

V850E2/ML4

DMA Control

R01AN1223JJ0100 Rev.1.00 Jun. 22, 2012

Abstract

This document describes how to set up the DMA (Direct Memory Access) and also gives an outline of the operation and describes the procedures for using a sample program.

The features of the operation are described below:

Transfer inside of inner RAM. Transfer between inner RAM and peripheral I/O. DMAC (Direct Memory Access Controller) transfers by software trigger. DTFR (DMA trigger factor register) transfers by interrupt signal trigger.

Products

V850E2/ML4

Integrated development environments

CubeSuite+, GHS MULTI V5.1.7D, and IAR for V850 Kickstart V3.80.

When using this application note with other Renesas MCUs, careful evaluation is recommended after making modifications to comply with the alternate MCU.



Contents

1.	Specifications			
2. 2	Operation Confirmation Conditions .1 Pin(s) Used	5 6		
3. 3	Software	7		
3	2.2 Required Memory Size	8		
3	 File Composition	9 10		
3	5.5 Function(s)	11 12		
3	5.7 Flowchart(s)	14		
	3.7.2 Initialize DMA.	14 15		
	3.7.3 Interrupt Processing	17		
4.	Sample Code	18		
5.	Reference Documents	18		



1. Specifications

This application note explains examples using DMAC (Direct Memory Access Controller) and DTFR (DMA Trigger Factor Register).

Table 1.1 lists the Peripheral Functions and their Applications and Fugure 1.1 shows the Example 1: transfer inside of inner RAM by DMAC.

Table 1.1	Peripheral Functions and their Applications
-----------	---

Peripheral Function	Application
Ports(P1_4, P1_5, P4_3, P4_4)	Connected to LEDs, and light on or off LEDs.
Ports(P0_0P0_15)	Destination of DTFR transfer.

The parameters required for the transfer of data are stored in the DMAC, which transfers data in response to DMA transfer requests. As an example of software DMA transfer requests, the main points in the operation of the software to transfer data between locations in internal memory are illustrated below.



Fugure1.1 Example1: transfer inside of inner RAM by DMAC



¹ Mass production of RSK board will start in August, 2012.

The DTFR (DMA Trigger Factor Register) is used to select the interrupt signal which becomes the trigger for DMA from among all interrupt signals. Requests from the DTFR for the DMA transfer of data are handled by the DMAC.

Specifically, the signal to be used as a DMA transfer request is selected from among the 128 input interrupt signals by the setting in DTFRn (n = 15 to 0). As an example of a hardware DMA transfer request, the main points in transferring data with a timer interrupt as the trigger are illustrated below. The data from internal RAM are output via port PO.



Figure 1.2 Example2: transfer between inner RAM and peripheral I/O by DTFR



² Mass production of RSK board will start in August, 2012.

2. Operation Confirmation Conditions

The sample code accompanying this application note has been run and confirmed under the conditions below.

Table 2.1 Operation Confirmation Conditions

Item	Contents
MCU used	V850E2/ML4
Operating frequency	200MHz (PLL multiplies the oscillator input frequency (fx: 10MHz) by 20.)
Operating voltage	3.3V
Integrated development	CubeSuite+ V1.00
environment	GHS MULTI V5.1.7D
	IAR for V850 Kickstart V3.80.1
C compiler	CX V1.20(CubeSuite+), optimization: default
	C-V850E 5.1.7 RELEASE(GHS MULTI), optimization: default
	IAR C/C++ Compiler for V850 3.80.1 [Kickstart] (3.80.1.30078),
	optimization: default
Operating mode	Normal operation mode
Sample code version	V1.00
Board used	RSK board
Device used	E1 emulator or MINICUBE
Tool used	none



2.1 Pin(s) Used

 Table 2.2 lists the Pins Used and Its Function.

Pin Name	I/O	Function
PORT P1_4	output	Port mode, output, LED0
PORT P1_5	output	Port mode, output, LED1
PORT P4_3	output	Port mode, output, LED2
PORT P4_4	output	Port mode, output, LED3
PORT P0_0P0_15	output	The destination of DTFR transfer

Table 2.2Pins Used and Its Functions



3. Software

3.1 Operation Overview

Operation Overview is described in the following figure. The main() function initializes each functions, and waits interrupt. When DMA transfer completion or transfer count match interrupt has occurred, this sample lights on or off LED, or clears transfer completion flag.

Figure 3.1 shows the Sequence.



Figure 3.1 Sequence diagram



3.2 Required Memory Size

Table 3.1 lists the Required Memory Size. (CubeSuite+, optimization=default)

Table 3.1Required Memory Size

Memory Used	Size	Remarks
ROM	5100	Shown as ROM area size in map file
RAM	4108	Shown as RAM area size in map file
Maximum user stack usage	4	CubeSuite+ stack estimation tool calculated.
Maximum interrupt stack usage	60	The same as above.

Note: The required memory size varies depending on the C compiler version and its options.



3.3 File Composition

Table 3.2 lists the File(s) Used in the Sample Code. Files not generated by the integrated development environment should not be listed in this table.

File Name	Outline	Remarks
crtE.s	Initialize hardware	Only in the project for CubeSuite+
startup.s		Only in the project for GHS MULTI
V850E2ML4.dir	Linker directive file	Only in the project for CubeSuite+
V850E2_ML4 DMA.ld		Only in the project for GHS MULTI
vector.s	Vector table	Only in the project for GHS MULTI
dma.h	Declare variables and functions.	
df4022_800.h	Declare register macros for V850E2/ML4	Only in the project for GHS MULTI
main.c	Main routine	
initial.c	Initialize software	
dma_control.c	Initialize DMA	
taua0_control.c	Initialize timer TAUA0	
interrupt.c	Interrupt routines	

Table 3.2File(s) Used in the Sample Code



3.4 Option-Setting Memory

This sample does not specify any option-bytes. Specify them if necessary.



3.5 Function(s)

Table 3.3 lists the Function(s).

Table 3.3 Function(s)

Function Name	Outline
void port_initial(void)	Sets up ports and their mode.
void cg_initial(void)	Initializes the special clock frequency control register.
void hbus_initial(void)	Initializes the AHB bus
void board_initial(void)	Initializes the LEDs
void ram_initial(void)	Sets up the initial state of the user RAM
void dma0_initial(void)	Initializes DMA0(DMAC)
void dma1_initial(void)	Initializes DMA1(DTFR)
void taua0_initial(void)	Initialize timer TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR
interrupt void int_dmact0(void)	DMA0 transfer count match interrupt.
interrupt void int_dma1(void)	DMA1 transfer completion interrupt.
void main(void)	Calls necessary initialization functions and waits interrupt in infinite
	loop.



3.6 Function Specification(s)

The following tables list the sample code function specification(s).

main()	
	Main routino
Hoador	
Declaration	
Declaration	void main(void) Calla a second visitialization functions and visits interment in infinite laser
Description	Cans necessary initialization functions and waits interrupt in inlinite loop.
Arguments	
Return value	-
port_initial()	
Outline	Sets up ports and their mode.
Header	csih.h
Declaration	void port_initial (void)
Description	Sets up ports in port-mode, output, for controlling LEDs.
Arguments	none -
Return Value	none
cg_initial()	
Outline	Initialize clock
Header	csih.h
Declaration	void cg_initial(void)
Description	Initializes the special clock frequency control register.
Arguments	none -
Return Value	none
hbus_initial()	
Outline	Initialize H-bus
Header	csih.h
Declaration	void hbus_initial(void)
Description	Initializes AHB-bus
Arguments	none -
Return Value	none
board_initial()	
Outline	Initialize board
Header	csih.h
Declaration	void board_initial(void)
Description	Initialize LED on the board.
Arguments	
Return Value	-



ram_initial()	
Outline	Initialize users' memory.
Header	csih.h
Declaration	void ram_initial(void)
Description	Initialize LED on the board.
Arguments	
Return Value	-
dma0 initial()	
Outline	Initialize DMA0
Header	dma.h
Declaration	void dma0_initial(void)
Description	Initialize DMA0 as software-triggered DMAC
Arguments	
Return Value	
dma1 initial()	
	Initialize DMA1
Header	dma h
Declaration	void dma1 initial(void)
Description	Initialize DMA0 as bardware-triggered DTEP
Arguments	
Arguments Boturn Voluo	
Return value	-
taua0_initial ()	
taua0_initial () Outline	Initialize timer TAUA0
taua0_initial () Outline Header	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0 initial(void)
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0()	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR. -
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR. -
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR. - - - DMA0 transfer count match interrupt - interrupt void int_dmact0(void) DMA0 transfer count match interrupt, inverts LED.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline Header	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline Header Declaration	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline Header Declaration Declaration Declaration Declaration	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR. - - - DMA0 transfer count match interrupt -
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.
taua0_initial () Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dmact0() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value int_dma1() Outline Header Declaration Description Arguments Return Value	Initialize timer TAUA0 dma.h void taua0_initial(void) Initialize TAUA0 as a trigger of DTFR.



3.7 Flowchart(s)

3.7.1 Main Processing

Figure 3.2 shows the Main Processing.



Figure 3.2 Main Processing



3.7.2 Initialize DMA

Figure 3.3 shows flowchart of Initialize DMA0(DMAC).



Figure 3.3 Initialize DMA0(DMAC)



Figure 3.4 shows flowchart of Initialize DMA1(DTFR).



Figure 3.4 Initialize DMA1(DTFR)



3.7.3 Interrupt Processing

Figure 3.5 shows the flowchart of Transfer count match interrupt.



Figure 3.5 Transfer count match interrupt

Figure 3.6 shows the flowchart of Transfer completion interrupt.



Figure 3.6 Transfer completion interrupt



4. Sample Code

Sample code can be downloaded from the Renesas Electronics website.

5. Reference Documents

User's Manual: Hardware

V850E2/ML4 User's Manual: Hardware (R01UH0262EJ) The latest version can be downloaded from the Renesas Electronics website.

Technical Update/Technical News

The latest information can be downloaded from the Renesas Electronics website.

Website and Support

Renesas Electronics website <u>http://www.renesas.com</u>

Inquiries

http://www.renesas.com/contact/



REVISION HISTORY

V850E2/ML4 Application Note DMA Controller

Boy	Data		Description
ILEV.	Dale	Page	Summary
1.00	Jun. 22, 2012	—	First edition issued

All trademarks and registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

General Precautions in the Handling of MPU/MCU Products

The following usage notes are applicable to all MPU/MCU products from Renesas. For detailed usage notes on the products covered by this manual, refer to the relevant sections of the manual. If the descriptions under General Precautions in the Handling of MPU/MCU Products and in the body of the manual differ from each other, the description in the body of the manual takes precedence.

1. Handling of Unused Pins

Handle unused pins in accord with the directions given under Handling of Unused Pins in the manual. The input pins of CMOS products are generally in the high-impedance state. In operation with an unused pin in the open-circuit state, extra electromagnetic noise is induced in the vicinity of LSI, an associated shoot-through current flows internally, and malfunctions occur due to the false recognition of the pin state as an input signal become possible. Unused pins should be handled as described under Handling of Unused Pins in the manual.

2. Processing at Power-on

The state of the product is undefined at the moment when power is supplied.

The states of internal circuits in the LSI are indeterminate and the states of register settings and pins are undefined at the moment when power is supplied.

In a finished product where the reset signal is applied to the external reset pin, the states of pins are not guaranteed from the moment when power is supplied until the reset process is completed. In a similar way, the states of pins in a product that is reset by an on-chip power-on reset function are not guaranteed from the moment when power is supplied until the power reaches the level at which resetting has been specified.

3. Prohibition of Access to Reserved Addresses Access to reserved addresses is prohibited.

The reserved addresses are provided for the possible future expansion of functions. Do not access these addresses; the correct operation of LSI is not guaranteed if they are accessed.

4. Clock Signals

After applying a reset, only release the reset line after the operating clock signal has become stable. When switching the clock signal during program execution, wait until the target clock signal has stabilized.

When the clock signal is generated with an external resonator (or from an external oscillator) during a reset, ensure that the reset line is only released after full stabilization of the clock signal. Moreover, when switching to a clock signal produced with an external resonator (or by an external oscillator) while program execution is in progress, wait until the target clock signal is stable.

5. Differences between Products

Before changing from one product to another, i.e. to one with a different type number, confirm that the change will not lead to problems.

The characteristics of MPU/MCU in the same group but having different type numbers may differ because of the differences in internal memory capacity and layout pattern. When changing to products of different type numbers, implement a system-evaluation test for each of the products.

Notice

- is the operation of co 1. Descriptions of descriptions and other rule ni era popridesi erdy in Music وتوجيعه موارداتهم اردر واردارهم ساورت a. You are hilly read alles affects straffe, calmers, and information in the straige of your againment. For some Manipulan again as no responsibility for any lesses however have no hid parties allong insur how the internet use of these straple, splinners, or internation.
- L. Persona Media the her west receptable care is propering the bri den installed in Die desampel, het Persone Meel ing datase may supravel that each independent aller is suprise. Pe nas na hàilly shataanse in ary danagaa harand iy yer mailing isan anga is ar amladera han ita islamater bahabai haran.
- ne deze net eggene og ligtlig for helegenent af peterie, sogerigies, er atter inisjoeren jeggenig rights af tird perfec by er staleg bern fle ven af fornesen. Menteries protester er L. Persona Restruct andragi labor salam december in the december. No learner, anywar, leader or allowed as a december, is graded having an day on y patient, supplying an allow induced property rights of Persona Having risks of -
- 4. Yes shalls het she, madh, say, ar sharrisa shaqqaydda ary harasa Makarka padari, shqilar is shala ar is pal. Harasa Makarka answaa na sayaadiliy farary kasas haarad iy yas ar Third parties whith a term much alternation, manifestion, wapy or alternation missagementation of Persona أجمع وا
- a Markadas protests are deselled assessing in the influency into goal grades. "Markad" and "Tay Cough". The resonance day applications for such Tenness, Markadas protest depends on L. Renau the products quality grade, as indicated instead
- Wandoof: Computers; allos equipment; communications equipment; losi and measure neri eşişmeti, anda sur sişeri eşişmeti; bere sişi متو المحصص يشعوا ممانهما يحمصالهوه ط aggigment; and industrial missio als.

This Coulty' Transmister conternet internation, take, when each fails earlied entering and deader and each earlier and each earlier and a star and a

who were all a barder or all a barder or all all and a barder or a stars the second bard of the second barder b Personal I Inglanding als), in my case on an property demages justice made control systems, alling registered etc.). You must alwais the spating grade of each Parseau Electronic before using E in a particular application. You may not use any Parasana Mantenina product for any application for which it is not interview. Parasana Mantenina shall not be in any way labits for any damages or lesses instructing you or this parties existing from the part of any Parsons Maximum product in which the product is not interded by Parsons Maxim

- You dentify use the Revision Restanding products descripted in this descripted by Revision Restancies, expecting with respect to the registration rating, specified apply vertices range, measured percentrations, heat metallies including and they product descriptions. Restancies that have no histopy for metal-informer and apply settings of a free use of the who protein layers and appelled ranges.
- insy. Tennes Maximias maintees is inpressible guily and reliabily of in periods, arrive dative periods have gasile absords 2. 48 the sent as the encourses of takens at a partnin rate ga nullmalana unior earth: use condition. Parlow, Parlow, Rannes Martinine protects are not object in matrice residence design. Proceeds to improve a whip measure is grant from against the parlow of a with the second and mail and a second second second in the second in the second s innis the early of the tiral products or applement workshowed by you. physics are
- L. Phone of Places series a Noreces Madvalue exics allow in stables as in andormanial malare each as the contramental compatibility of each Parsesan Madvalue product. Places was Parsesan Madvalue product a barrant factor in an agging the series and agging the series a inst a Persona Madradas acias allas ter daisle as in arder يعمد مط ne fablig for demagne or lesses meaning as a result of your non-people as all applicable hous and regulaters.
- 1. Ner sons Meet with a predents and technology may nel ha used for ar banger and his any periods or gaterns where markedism, use, or othe la periods of order any applies regulative. You dentify not use Revenue Medicates products or Industry descript in this descript in propersy nating to and any applications or one by the address, including but and include to the description of more applications and a standard by the address of the description of more applications applications and regulations and falses the proceedings required by each term and regulations.
- 18. It is the suggesting of the paper or definitor of ference Restories protects, who definites, departs of, or othership picces the protect with a third party is sufficient. This party is a straight with the second pendante.

 This document may not be represented in significated in any sum, in mission in part, with set pair withen summer at Remote a Maximute.
 Place senior a Remote Maximute action allow Pyre have any quarters regarding the internation contained in the descent or Remote Maximute products, or I year have any other highling. (1989 1) "Mersons Bedenber av und in his denrænt nærer færens Hardenie Corportien and eine heleder in mejody samet akkelderier. Fink 6, "Mersons Bedenber prokeijig" mans av proket dendeset av merskateret by srier færense. Bedenber.



SALES OFFICES

Reneses Electronics Corporation

http://www.reneses.com

later in "Algelinnes records and" for the initial and detailed information. Researce Martmaine America Inc. 2003 Sant: Resilvant Saria Clara, (JA 2008) 4984, U.S.A. Tak +1-405-888-4000, Pac +1-405-886-8128 Response Electronics Cornels Lindbad 1161 Marciner Read, Marcander, Criste LSV 900, Careada Tel: +1-005-000-0141, Par: +1-010-000-0220 Resource Maximulas Burges Lindhad Dubas Maximula Miland, Barne Kod, Bushingkerakira, 216 KV, U.K Tel: e44-1823-285-100, Par. e44-1823-285-285 inter Contractor Durane Contract Avectoring to 10, 40472 Dissellert, Germany Tel: +19-211-45030, Fex: +19-211-4509-1227 Recover Electronics (China) Ca., Lid. 78 Mar, Caustan Pizza, Mal? 2007 and Haldan China, Baljay 100703, P.A.China Tal 1991 (1992) 1156, Tax 1997 (1992) 7778 The server Electronics (Sanafra) (Co., Lin. Urg 201, EXE, AZA Caster, Ho. 1923 Labout Phys.Ref., Pasterg Clothal, Brangini 207120, Crime Tat. 1994 (1977) 1918, Fax: 1997 (1987) 7499 / 7995 Reserve Electronice Hang Kang Lindini Urž 1967–1973, 1977, Tener I, Gand Carley Pises, 193 Prime Edward Reed West, Alangini, Raview, Hang Kang Tel: +Rindistentili, Face Hell: 2004 (1921) Recover Choksening Talaxan Co., Ltd. 137, Hu. 202, Fu Antro North Picel, Talaxi, Talaxin Tal: 1889-1-01/25-0020, Fac: 1989 1-01/25-00/20 Province Electronics Electronics Plan. Ltd. 1 January - The Avenue, FCP-10, January Bay Tower, Weynpers COURTS Tel: +15-9213-0200, Fice: +15-92754001 أمالك بشك بشروانية و Urg 200, Electrik, Harner, America, America Trado Contro, No. 13, Jin Pendena Band, 40050 Polaling Japa, Universe Daral Electri, Melaguie Tal: 400-97855-5980, Fac: 409-97805-9610 Research Electronics Rosen Co., Ltd. 115, Sanit Laries of Rils, 7852 Yasimum-Cong, Kengnam-Ku, Saod 135-080, Kasen Tel: 486-586-5737, For: 486-566-5141

> © 2212 Rossess Electronics Corporation. Al rights a Colophon 2.8